ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 12, 2010
1:37 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senator Lesil MQiire

Senat or John Coghi |

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Denni s Egan
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 92

"An Act ratifying an interstate conpact to elect the President
and Vice-President of the United States by national popul ar
vote; and making related changes to statutes applicable to the
selection by voters of electors for candidates for President and
Vice- President of the United States and to the duties of those
el ectors. ™

- MOVED SB 92 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 239

"An Act relating to ignition interlock devices, to refusal to
submt to a chemcal test, and to driving while wunder the
i nfluence.™

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 284

“"An Act relating to state election canpaigns, the duties of the
Al aska Public Ofices Conmm ssion, the reporting and disclosure
of expenditures and independent expenditures, the filing of
reports, and the identification of certain comrunications in
state el ection canpaigns; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 92

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2010



SHORT TITLE: U.S. PRESI DENTI AL ELECTI ON COVPACT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

02/ 02/ 09 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 09 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 02/ 10 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 02/ 10 (S Moved SB 92 Qut of Committee

02/ 02/ 10 (S M NUTE( STA)

02/ 03/ 10 (S) STA RPT 3DP 2NR

02/ 03/ 10 (S DP: MENARD, FRENCH, KOOKESH

02/ 03/ 10 (S) NR: MEYER, PASKVAN

02/ 19/ 10 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 19/ 10 (S Heard & Held

02/ 19/ 10 (S M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 01/ 10 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
03/01/ 10 (S) Bill Hearing Postponed

03/ 12/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

Bl LL: SB 239
SHORT TITLE: | GNI TION | NTERLOCK DEVI CES/ DUl / CHEM TEST
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

01/ 25/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 10 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 24/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 24/ 10 (S <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 01/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 01/ 10 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 12/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 284
SHORT TITLE: CAMPAI GN EXPENDI TURES
SPONSOR(s): JUDI Cl ARY

02/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 19/ 10 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 02/ 10 (S) STA RPT 5DP

03/ 02/ 10 (S) DP: MENARD, FRENCH, MEYER  PASKVAN
KOOKESH

03/ 02/ 10 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

03/ 02/ 10 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

03/ 02/ 10 (S) Moved SB 284 Qut of Committee

03/ 02/ 10 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 08/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 08/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 08/ 10 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 12/ 10 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2010



W TNESS REG STER

GRANT W HUNTER, representing hinself
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated opposition to SB 92.

PAT STI DMAN, representing hinself
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Stated support for SB 92.

RALPH STEVENSOQN, representing hinself
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Stated support for SB 92.

JEFF WORTHY, representing hinself
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated support for SB 92.

BARRY FADEM Presi dent
Nat i onal Popul ar Vote
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 92.

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 239.

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, St af f
to Senat or Meyer
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 239 on
behal f of the sponsor.

CHRI' S CELL, Lieutenant
Al aska Peace O ficers Association (APQOA)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 239.

DAVI D BROVER, Assi stant Attorney General

Crimnal Division

Depart nent of Law

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supporting information related to
SB 239.

KERRY HENNI NGS, Driver Licensing Manager

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provided information on ignition interlocks
as they relate to SB 239.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2010



DOUG WOOLI VER, Admi ni strative Attorney

Al aska Court System

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on ignition interlocks as they
relate to SB 239.

ALPHEUS BULLARD, Att orney

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions about the proposed
anmendnents to SB 283, version A

HOLLY HI LL, Executive Director

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 284.

JOHN PTACI N, Assistant Attorney General

G vil Division

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 284.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St af f
to Senat or Coghill
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained the intent of Amendnent 6 to SB
284, version A

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 37:19 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:37 p.m Senators Coghill,
McGuire, Welechowski, and French were present at the call to
or der.

SB 92-U.S. PRESI DENTI AL ELECTI ON COVPACT

1: 37:45 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 92. The bill was
heard previously.

1: 38: 15 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2010



GRANT W HUNTER, representing hinmself, stated opposition to SB
92 because he can think of no reason that persons who are not
entitled to vote in Alaska elections should be allowed to decide
how Al aska casts its electoral votes in presidential elections

Furthernore, he said it isn't proper for one legislature to
deci de how el ectoral votes shall be used in future elections. In
each election this decision should be made by a vote of the
people entitled to vote in Alaska elections and subject to the
el ectoral procedures provided by lawin this state.

MR. HUNTER said he is famliar with the argunent that the
majority of the people should elect the President, but Article
Il and Amendnent 12 of the U S. Constitution provide for the
el ectoral votes to make that choice. Since 1860 it's been the
practice in all but two states that the popular vote in a given
state determnes how the electors shall be chosen. Those two
states divide their electoral votes by Congressional district
and in practice they wouldn't have nmade a difference, he
subm tted.

MR HUNTER cited and disputed different argunents for the
nat i onal popular vote including better representation of
mnority views and the 2000 presidential election when the
national popular vote was not the sanme as the electoral vote
What it really comes down to, he said, is that the |egislature
has no business giving away the votes of Alaskans in future
el ections. It may even violate the Voting Rights Act. He noted
that he submtted an email supporting his views.

1:45:27 PM

PAT STIDMAN, representing hinself, stated support for SB 92.
Qurs is a transform ng denocracy that is beconm ng nore avail abl e
to each and every citizen, and to protect this each individual
vote must be counted, he said. There have been tinmes when the
will of the people has been overridden because of the Electora
Col | ege system he warned. | urge you to pass this bill and get
on with denocracy, he concl uded.

1:47: 39 PM

RALPH STEVENSON, representing hinself, stated support for SB 92.
The national popular vote issue is sinple and goes to the core
of this nation's foundation. It is one vote for one person. Wen
the country was young, rural areas needed assistance to achieve
voting parity with the population centers, but that's no |onger

the case. The national popular vote will ensure just one thing,
and that is that every voter will be inportant and every vote
will be equal. Never would a president be elected who does not

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2010



reflect the nobst votes cast by the populous. Finally, he said,
in this tinme of hyper-partisanship, this proposal enjoys a
strong spectrum of bipartisan support. "It's only right that
Al aska take up this neasure," he concl uded.

1:49: 37 PM

JEFF WORTHY, representing hinself, stated support for SB 92 and
t he national popular vote. He opined that the electoral vote and
that of the Electoral College should mrror the national vote
for president. He thanked the commttee for taking the time to
| ook at this issue.

CHAI R FRENCH noted that Barry Fadem testified previously but he
was available if the commttee had questions for him

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked M. Fadem his opinion of the concern
that sonme people have that this wouldn't help small states I|ike
Al aska.

MR. FADEM President, National Popular Vote, replied Al aska
receives no attention in a presidential election because it
isn'"t closely divided; it has nothing to do with the fact that
it has just three electoral votes. It's that Al aska and other
smal|l electoral states are not closely divided. They are not
battl eground states. The purpose of the national popular vote
proposal is to make a vote in Alaska just as valuable as a vote
in a closely divided, battleground state, |ike New Hanpshire and
Ohio. He pointed out that the 12 non-battleground small states
have a conbined voter population of 11.5 mllion and Chio has
about that same nunber of voters. These 12 snall states have 40
el ectoral votes anpong them whereas Onhio has 20 el ectoral votes.
In the 2008 election Chio received 62 of 300 election visits
while the 12 small states, including Al aska, received just 2
visits. He reiterated that if the national popular vote proposal
passes, a vote in Alaska would becone just as inportant as a
vote cast in Onhio.

CHAI R FRENCH cl osed public testinony.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noved to report SB 92 from conmmittee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

1:53:33 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL objected. He said he's tried to stay open, but
after a lot of thought he's concluded that this isn't the right
thing go do. W should stay focused on the fact that this is a
republic and that this proposal would change Alaska to a nore

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2010



popul i st denocratic structure. | prefer to maintain a republic
denocratic focus, he said.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he's also |ooked at the statistical issues
and has cone to the conclusion that this would dimnish Al aska's
vote capacity alnost by half. "I don't see where we gain and |
see where we probably lose nore of the Tenth Anmendnment issues
that protect us as a nation of states." He acknow edged that the
w nner take all issue caused him pause, but even under this
conpact it would still be the winner take all. It's just that
Al askans woul d surrender their vote to sonmebody else. In fact,
t he Al aska popul ar vote may be overrul ed under this proposal.

SENATOR COGHI LL pointed out that Alaska assign its electoral
votes by a popular vote to Alaskans who assign the w nner take
all. The winner take all on this conpact would be no different
SO we don't gain anything. "lI'mgoing to stick with what | think
is probably the best federalist approach and that is a nation of
states. W're certainly a nation of people, but even in the
Preanble to the Constitution it's "W the people of the United
States'™ and | want to keep it that way so |I'm going to vote
"No' on this bill," he concl uded.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said he isn't sure how he'd vote if he had
to push the up or down button today but there have been good
argurments on both sides, which is healthy for the denocracy. He
clarified that his notion is to nove the bill on to the next
commttee for further debate. He said he'll give the bill a "No
Reconmendation" as it Jleaves the conmittee, but he firmy
believes that noving it on is the best course of action.

1:57: 08 PM

A roll call vote was taken. The notion to report SB 92 from
commttee passed on a 3:1 vote wth Senator W elechowski,
Senator MQ@ire and Senator French voting yea and Senator
Coghi I'l voting nay.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that on a vote of 3:1, SB 92 npbves from
the Senate Judiciary Standing Conmtt ee.

At ease

SB 239-1 GNI TI ON | NTERLOCK DEVI CES/ DUl / CHEM TEST

1: 59: 24 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consi derati on of SB 239.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2010



SENATOR MCGUI RE noved to adopt work draft commttee substitute
(CS) for SB 239, |abeled 26-LS1210\S, as the working docunent.
There being no objection, version S was before the commttee.

2:00: 07 PM

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER, Sponsor of SB 239, said that two years ago
he worked to get |legislation passed pertaining to ignition
interlock devices as part of sentencing for driving under the
i nfluence (DU ) of alcohol. The | aw has been in place for over a
year and he has discovered that this effective tool hasn't been
used as often as anticipated. He reported that in 2009 there
were 3,513 court ordered installations, yet only 218 ignition
interlock devices were installed. This should be a concern for
everyone, particularly since it has been proven that these
devi ces do keep people who have been drinking from starting the
car and driving, he said.

SB 239 specifies the tinme period in which the ignition interlock
device would be needed correlated to the sentencing for the
various offenses. For the first tinme DU the interlock device
would be required for six nonths. The bill also lists
installation of an ignition interlock device as a condition of
sentencing that could not be suspended. He noted that the
previous bill nmade this an option, which was a m st ake.

2:03: 02 PM

SENATOR COCGHILL asked if contractors could handle the increased
capacity if these devices were mandated as a part of sentencing
for DU cases.

SENATOR MEYER replied during the initial bill hearings two
vendors indicated that they would not have a problem neeting the
need.

CHRI STINE MARASI GAN, Staff to Senator Meyer, added that those
two providers contacted the sponsor's office recently to say
that it doesn't work to have probation and the ignition
interlock device tied because people were either waiting out
their probation so that they didn't have to have the ignition
interlock installed or they weren't getting the device put on in
the first place if their probation was in any way suspended. The
providers indicated that they <could be doing a Ilot nore
installations. W took that into consideration when we | ooked at
separating the two, she said.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2010



SENATOR COGHI LL questioned how installations and nanagenent
would be handled in the |ess populated and rural areas of the
st at e.

M5. MARASIGAN replied the original bill provided exenptions to
accommodat e people who don't have access to these services. This
has not changed.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if the two vendors have had any trouble
keeping the devices working in extreme cold weather. He noted
that was a concern when the bill passed initially.

2:06: 34 PM

SENATOR MEYER said they've found that nost of the court-ordered
ignition interlock installations have been in Fairbanks, and
t hey appear to work fine in cold weather.

CHAI R FRENCH noted the repeal ed subsection (r) and asked if the
source of the problem was that the different probation periods
al | oned people to escape the ignition interlock requirenent.

M5. MARASI GAN said M. Woliver highlighted that |anguage when
t he sponsor began tal king about decoupling the requirenment for
an ignition interlock from probation. Wat has happened is that
people on probation for DU would decide not to drive so they
woul dn't get an ignition interlock or they wouldn't get one if
their probation period didn't match the tine requirenent for the
ignition interlock. Nor would it be a part of their sentence
she sai d.

2:08:41 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI expressed appreciation that the sponsor was
attenpting to fix the problem and said he supported the bill.

CHAI R FRENCH agreed and restated the stunning disparity between
the court orders versus the installations.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he wonders if the |ow nunbers reflect that
sone Anchorage judges are ordering chemcal treatnent for those
convi cted of DU s.

SENATOR MEYER suggested the conmttee ask M. Woliver why
ignition interlock devices aren't wused nuch 1in Anchorage.
Perhaps it's because the judges are ordering other prograns, but
that's obviously where nost of the DU s occur, he said.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 12, 2010



M5. MARASIGAN reiterated that sone people who have been
convicted of DU sinply opt not to drive.

SENATOR MEYER said the intention here is to keep people from
driving when they're drinking. Opting not to drive at all is
just fine.

2:10: 41 PM

CHRI'S CELL, Li eutenant, Alaska Peace Oficers Association
(APQA), said she represents about 900 Al askans statew de, many
of whom are charged with picking up the pieces after drunk
driving accidents. She said they would like to do less of this,
which is why APOA supports SB 239, which requires interlock
ignition devices as a mandatory part of DU sentences. 2008
Nati onal H ghway Transportation Safety Board statistics show
that soneone in the U S is killed in a drunk driving crash once
every 45 mnutes so any tool that helps to keep drunk drivers
off the road and holds them accountable for their actions would
be hel pful.

LI EUTENANT CELL said |aw enforcenent is particularly interested
in reformng and deterring those persons who becone "hard core"
drunk drivers. These are drivers who are found to be driving
with a blood al cohol level that is twice the legal Iimt. A 2005
survey of these drivers indicated that hard core drunk drivers
believe that their actions would have been changed had nore
severe penalties been inposed for earlier offenses. 70 percent
of the hard core drunk drivers surveyed said they believe that
the requirement for an ignition interlock device would have
changed their drunk driving. W should listen to these people,
she sai d.

2:12:43 PM

DAVID BROVNER, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Crimnal D vision,
Department of Law (DOL), said he is an Alaska traffic safety
resource prosecutor and he sees that tying the requirenent for
an ignition interlock to the time of probation can be a problem
depending on the length of the sentence. He related that the
probation period for a first time DU is long enough to have an
ignition interlock and there's probably enough time on a second
DU, but even though every felony DU judgnent has a requirenent
for an ignition interlock device, he suspects that there have
been no felony DU people who have ever gotten one.

MR. BROWNER said a lot of what this bill does is to put all

ignition interlock issues and sentencing issues for DU in Title
28, the drunk driving statute. Wien it [only] referred to AS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 12, 2010



12.25.102, the judge could either sentence sonebody as a
condition of probation or as a condition of sentence. In this
case it would be a condition of sentence, he said.

SENATOR COGHILL asked if wmany of the 3,513 court ordered
ignition interlock devices were part of a sentence for felony
DUI .

MR. BROWER said felony DU s are included in that nunber, but
that's not the only reason for the disparity. Some of the other
reasons include people who are on probation for 2 years and
don't want to get an ignition interlock device. The assunption
is that they decide to wait two years so that they no |onger
need an ignition interlock device. This bill anends that so that
once a person gets their license back they would have to have an
ignition interlock installed for a certain period of tine. But
it wwuld be a fallacy to think that people who have revoked
licenses don't drive because nost of them do. "Repeat drunk
drivers, as a general rule, do not have a license and | think
that nost people with a felony DU have been driving wthout a
license,” he said.

2:17: 23 PM

SENATOR COGHILL said his reason for asking was to find out how
many of those 3,513 court orders nmay not have been mandated
because it was a felony DU and it was understood that they did
not have a right to drive.

MR BRONER said the way the statute is currently witten
everyone gets an ignition interlock order as a condition when
they regain the privilege to drive. That doesn't change in this
bill. He said he doesn't know how nmany peopl e haven't yet becone
eligible for an ignition interlock or even a |license.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if there is data indicating that this
reduces recidivism

MR. BRONER replied there isn't any data from Al aska, but a study
of other states indicates that there is benefit. A recent
Nati onal Transportation Safety Adm nistration report said that
while ignition interlocks are on they work, but once they've
been renoved people tend to fall back into their old patterns.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said the data that was presented for the
initial bill was inpressive and it weighed heavily in his
support. He stressed the inportance of naking decisions that are
based on evidence and science and suggested that DOL and the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2010



Court System should be interested in tracking this to know
whether or not this policy is working. My guess is that it wll
have huge positive inpacts, he added.

MR. BROAER said that will be done. He added that this bill
doesn't change the current law so nmuch as it cleans it up to
ensure that nore people get ignition interlocks install ed.

2:20: 28 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said he's still a bit puzzled because he thought
the law had been witten in a manner to allow judges to not
i mpose an ignition interlock as a condition of sentence, but the
sponsor said that a judge ordered an ignition interlock 3,513
times in 2009. There seens to be a disconnect between the court
orders and the nunber installed and it seens to be related to
the fact that a lot of people are saying they just won't drive
while they're on probation. He asked if it's really the case
that 3,300 Alaskans are waiting out the ignition interlock
period or if there are other answers.

MR. BROVWER replied that doesn't seem reasonable, but he doesn't
have any ot her answers.

CHAI R FRENCH observed that this will do away with the ability
for people to wait out their probation period during which they
would be required to have an ignition interlock. This says a
person with a DU has to get an ignition interlock for six
nmont hs when they get their |icense back.

2:23: 06 PM

KERRY HENNI NGS, Driver Licensing Manager, Division of Mtor
Vehicles (DW), Depar t ment of Adm ni strati on, i ntroduced
hersel f.

CHAIR FRENCH asked what, if anything, DW wll do to ensure
that a person who has lost their |icense because of a DU gets
an ignition interlock when they apply to get their |icense back.

M5. HENNINGS replied DW's current practice won't change. Wen
sonmeone applies for a limted privilege or to regain their
privilege and there is an ignition interlock order in place, DW
requi res proof of installation.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how DW woul d know that an ignition interlock
order is in place.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2010



M5. HENNINGS replied that conmes in on the DU judgnent and the
record i s annotated upon receipt.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what happens if a person applies to get their
I i cense back and says they don't have a car.

M5. HENNI NGS explained that if someone cones in to apply for
[imted privileges they need to have a designated vehicle to put
the ignition interlock on. She added that DW also can issue
identification cards in lieu of a license.

2:26: 01 PM

SENATOR COGHILL said he'd like to know if there have been any
chall enges to this because he can see that sonmeone who uses the
same vehicle mght say that they are being treated unfairly.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Woliver if he knows of any problem that
the Court System has with respect to issuing ignition interlock
or ders.

DOUG WOOLI VER, Administrative Attorney, Alaska Court System
said he isn't aware of any problens associated with issuing the

orders, but he is aware that part of the reason for the bill is
to make <changes |ike not suspending an ignition interlock
devi ce.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he has any feedback to offer from the
j udges' perspecti ve.

MR. WOOLI VER said judges hear that it can be expensive but he is
unaware of any inplenentation difficulties other than the
practical aspects of a harsh sentence that 1is sonetines
difficult for people to neet. He added that he was stunned to
learn that less than 10 percent of the people who were ordered
to get an ignition interlock actually have them

2:29: 20 PM
CHAI R FRENCH cl osed public testinony and announced he would hold
SB 239 in commttee.

SB 284- CAMPAI GN EXPENDI TURES

2:29:45 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 284 and said that
today the commttee would work on anendnents. He noted that M.
Ptacin from the Departnment of Law (DOL), M. Bullard from
Legi slative Legal and Research, and Ms. H Il from the Al aska

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 12, 2010



Public Ofices Commssion (APCC), were on line to explain
aspects of the anmendnents.

2:31: 02 PM
CHAIR FRENCH noved Anmendnent 1, |abeled 26-LS1448\A 3, and
obj ected for discussion purposes.

AMENDMVENT 1

OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR FRENCH
TGO  SB 284

Page 2, line 28:
Fol |l owi ng "an":
I nsert "independent"”
Fol | ow ng "expenditures":
I nsert "nade and contri butions recei ved"

CHAIR FRENCH said this is to make it clear that the report has
to include the noney you spend and the noney you have taken in.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said perhaps he's missing a nuance in the
statute, but it would seemthat if an expenditure is being nmade,
regardless of whether it's independent, it would require
reporting.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Bullard to sumrari ze the contents of the
menor andum he sent regarding this amendnent

ALPHEUS BULLARD, Attorney, Legislative Legal and Research
Services, explained that right now AS 15.13.040(d) and (e) that
address expenditures both in the bill and also in current |aw
are applied wunder APOC regulations to AAC 50.336 only to
i ndependent expenditures. Responding to Senator Welechowski's
coorment, he said that expenditures for candidates, nongroup
entities, and groups have to be reported under AS 15.13.110 so
it's been the practice of APOC to require only independent
expenditure reports under these statutory subsections.

CHAIR FRENCH recapped that in Section 3, AS 15.13.040(d) is
being anmended and it is a reporting requirenent that applies
only to independent expenditures.

MR. BULLARD said yes and the other line of the anmendnment is to
better describe what that section is doing.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2010



CHAI R FRENCH wi t hdrew his objection to Anendnent 1 and asked if
there was further objection.

SENATOR COGHI LL objected for further discussion. He related that
he agrees wth the anmendnent, but he would Iike the conmttee to
consi der an anendnent he prepared that includes the contents of
Amendnent 1 and al so conform ng changes on page 6, |ines 13-15.

CHAI R FRENCH suggested that the commttee finish w th Amendnent
1 and then address his proposal as Amendnent 2.

SENATOR COGHI LL agreed and renoved his objection to Anendnent 1.

CHAIR FRENCH found no further objection and announced that
Amendrent 1 i s adopt ed.

2:36: 05 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL noved Anendnent 2. He explained that it consists
of lines 4-11 of anendnent 26-LS1448\A. 7 to SB 284. Lines 1-3
wer e adopted as Anendnent 1.

AMENDMVENT 2

OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR COGHI LL
TGO  SB 284

Page 6, line 13, follow ng "An":
I nsert "independent™

Page 6, line 14, follow ng "an":
I nsert "independent™

Page 6, line 15, following the first occurrence of
"an":
I nsert "independent”

CHAI R FRENCH obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked M. Bullard if there was a reason
that Amendnment 1 didn't insert the word "independent” on page 6,
lines 13-15 as Anendnent 2 did.
MR. BULLARD replied the requests for the amendnents were
slightly different. The request that resulted in the drafting of
26-LS1448\A. 7 was only to insert the "independent" | anguage.

SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI asked if Amendnent 2 tracks Anendnent 1.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- March 12, 2010



MR. BULLARD said he would describe the changes as an aid to the
reader rather than substantive |egal changes. The result of
Amendrent 1 is that the person turning to 15.13.110(g) now wil|
be remnded that the report is the independent expenditure
report.

CHAI R FRENCH renoved his objection and announced that w thout
further objection, Anendnent 2 is adopted.

2:39:43 PM

CHAIR FRENCH noved Anendrnent 3, |abeled 26-LS1448\A 4, and
objected for discussion purposes. He explained that the idea
behind the anmendnent was to nake certain that people (neaning
i ndi vi dual s, nongroups, groups, corporations, and unions mnaking
i ndependent expenditures) create a separate bank account to
receive noney for funds that wll be expended in these efforts.
It's easier for everyone to know that a separate account is
necessary so that no one is tenpted to draw from a general
treasury. It also nakes it easier for APOC and others to | ook at
the records of the person making the expenditures in the event
of an alleged violation.

AMENDVENT 3

OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR FRENCH
TO SB 284

Page 4, following |ine 4:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 7. AS 15.13 is anmended by adding a new
section to read:

Sec. 15. 13. 052. | ndependent  expendi t ures;
political activities accounts. (a) Before naking
an independent expenditure in support of or in
opposition to a candidate or before naking an
i ndependent expenditure in support of or in
opposition to a ballot proposition or question,
each person other than an individual, candi date,
or nongroup entity wth an annual operating
budget of $250 or less, shall establish a
political activities account. The political
activities account may be a separate account in
the person's general treasury. The political
activities account nust be admnistered using
generally accepted accounting principles. All
funds used by the person to nmake independent

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 12, 2010



expenditures nust be drawn from the person's
political activities account.

(b) Records necessary to substantiate the
requirenents of (a) of this section nust be nade
avai | abl e for inspection by the conm ssion.

(c) Each person who has established a
political activities account under this section
shal | preserve al | records necessary to

substantiate the person's conpliance with the
requi renents of this section for each of the six
precedi ng years."

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Bullard to convey the suggestions that he
attached to Anmendnent 3.

MR. BULLARD directed attention to the language in Section 4 on
page 3 that says that the person neking the independent
expenditure has to include information about the contributions
they have received in every independent expenditure report. The
meno suggests that this section mght be nore at hone in the new
bill section proposed in Anendnent 3. Although this is neither
legally nor constitutionally required, it nay be a nore
practical and workable solution for both APOC and for those
peopl e maki ng i ndependent expenditures, he said.

2:42: 52 PM

CHAIR FRENCH summarized that he is suggesting that the
i ndependent expenditure report, referenced in Section 4, should
be incorporated into the account of nonies contributed to and
spent fromthe political activities accounts.

MR. BULLARD said that's right; they would nerely have the duty
to report when funds were transferred into the account or when
funds were |eaving the account. They wouldn't have to separately
account for contributors on a report of an expenditure. He said
he isn't sure howit would work in practice.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Holly Hi Il if she had foll owed the discussion
regardi ng Anendnent 3 and the way it would integrate with the
current reporting requirenents as envisioned by the bill.

HOLLY HI LL, Executive Director, Alaska Public O fices Conm ssion

(APOC), Departnent of Admnistration, said she didn't have a
copy of the amendnents so she would defer to M. Ptacin

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 12, 2010



2:44: 39 PM

JOHN  PTACI N, Assistant Attorney General, G vil Di vi si on,
Departnent of Law (DOL), said it doesn't seem that M. Bullard
is suggesting that a corporation cannot make an expenditure
using its own coffers. Rather, he's suggesting that to keep the
reporting as clean as possible, that they create another account
for all the contributions come in, including contributions from
a corporation or |abor union general treasury.

CHAIR FRENCH agreed that it isn't restricting where the noney
comes from it's setting up one |location that APOC or others can
go to find out the amobunt of noney a particular entity collected
and how they spend it.

MR. PTACIN said he doesn't see an issue with the suggestion. Any
|aw that burdens political speech in this area is subject to
strict scrutiny so there wuld need to be a conpelling
government interest and narrow tailoring. This appears on its
face to be narrowy tailored to a governnent interest as long as
there isn't sone outright restriction that the corporation can't
spend its noney and be the speaker.

2:46:18 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said he wanted give Ms. Hill an opportunity to
consi der whether or not there's a way to integrate Section 4 and
the new Section 7 proposed in Anendnent 3. He suggested the
conmittee address Amendnent 3 and at sone |later tine address M.
Bul | ock' s suggesti on.

He asked if there's sonething in law that says that candi dates
have to establish political activities accounts or if it's just
a really good idea that candi dates foll ow.

M5. HILL said she can't cite the statute or regulation, but APCC
does advi se candi dates to keep separate canpai gn accounts.

SENATOR COGHI LL added that there is a requirenent for candi dates
to have an account that registers the nane of the canpaign and
the treasury. The statute or regulation specifies what has to be
included in the account nane and the particular APOC reporting
forns that are used.

2:48:12 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI referenced the |anguage on lines 7 and 8 of
Amendnent 3 and questioned whether the intent was to say "$250
or nore" rather than "$250 or less," which is the |anguage in
t he anmendnent .

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 12, 2010



MR. BULLARD said this requirenent applies to all persons other
than an individual, a candidate, or a nongroup entity with an
annual operating budget of $250 or |ess.

CHAI R FRENCH sunmarized that if you' re an individual, candidate,
or nongroup entity with an annual operating budget of $250 or
| ess, you are not captured under the requirement to establish a
political activities account.

MR. BULLARD said that's correct.
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI conmmented that the | anguage is awkward.

CHAI R FRENCH renoved his objection and announced that without
further objection, Amendnent 3 is adopted. He noted that this
section could see further change when M. H Il sees how it
interacts with Section 4 or if a commttee menber finds a better
way to express to whomthis does and does not apply.

2:50: 07 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said Anendnent 4 and Anmendnent 5 are both about
disclainmers. This is putting words in the advertisenent that
hel ps viewers, readers, or listeners understand who is speaking
with regard to el ections.

CHAIR FRENCH noved Anmendnent 4, |abeled 26-LS1448\A 6, and
obj ected for discussion purposes.

AMVENDMVENT 4

OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR FRENCH
TGO  SB 284

Page 5, line 27, follow ng "the":
Insert "nane and city and state of residence or
princi pal place of business, as applicable, of each of the"

Page 5, line 29, follow ng "comuni cati on":
Delete ", with the words "top five contributors"”

Page 6, following line 11:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 12. AS 15.13.090 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:
(c) To satisfy the requirenments of
(a)(2)(C) of this section and, if applicable, (a)(2)(D

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 12, 2010



of this section, the followi ng statenent or statenents
must be read, in a manner that is easily heard, or
placed in the communication so as to be easily
di scernable, or, in a conmunication that is transmtted
by a nmethod that includes both audio and video
conponents, be read in a manner that is easily heard
and placed in the comrunication so as to be easily
di scer nabl e:

This comunication was paid for by
(person's nanme and city and state of
princi pal place of business).

The top contributors of (person's nane)
are (the nane and city and state of
resi dence or principal place of business, as
applicable, of the largest contributors to
t he person under AS 15.13.090(a)(2)(D))."

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what AS 15.13.040(e)(5) says.

2:53:15 PM
MR. BULLARD replied it's a reference to the contributors in
Section 4 on page 3, paragraph (5).

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if this would apply to a conpany Iike
Exxon or if it's designed for groups.

MR. BULLARD directed attention to the words "if any" on page 5,
line 28, and explained that the concern about contributors is
nore about trade organizations and entities where a nunber of
persons have come together to engage in sone advocacy and |ess
about a major corporation |ike Exxon.

SENATOR COGHILL said his concern with requiring information
about the five largest contributors is that it could create a

situation where there's nore information than people are willing
to handle and the intended inpact mght be dimnished. He
suggested instead that the principal of ficers identify
t hensel ves and provide information about the conmunication
because this looks Ilike it wll take a full 30 seconds to
communicate this information. Let me know if |I'm wong on that,
he sai d.

2:56: 35 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 12, 2010



CHAI R FRENCH responded there nay be a need to run a test with a
stopwatch to see what it'll take to get this information into a
30 second advertisenent.

SENATOR COGHILL clarified that he supports full disclosure, but
this is reportable information that people will get in other
venues. It may not be well received in this venue because it'l
be ignored, he added.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Bullard how far you can go with respect
to requiring an audible disclosure in a 30 second television
advertisenment without infringing on a corporation's or union's
or candidate's First Amendnent rights.

MR. BULLARD replied disclosure would be |ess burdensone than
either a total prohibition or a limtation, but he can't say
with any certainty where the line is for too nuch disclosure in
this context.

2:59:13 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI stated that he absolutely believes that it
is a conpelling state interest to require as nuch disclosure as

possible and he supports listing at Jleast the top five
contributors and their location. "I'm inclined to err on the
side of nore disclosure because | think that big noney in
el ections is dangerous to representative denocracy." | support

your anendment, he concl uded.

CHAIR FRENCH thanked him for his coments and added that he
woul dn't be surprised to see his words in a brief sone day.

MR. PTACIN said he will echo that thought and he applauds the
conversati on. The discussion about conpel ling governnent
i nt erest certainly helps establish a record for future
litigation. W are talking about free speech and these |aws are
subj ect to chall enge, he said.

CHAIR FRENCH said he wll associate hinself wth Senator
W el echowski's coments because he thinks he's right. The
federal governnent has experience in this area, but the State of
Al aska has never allowed corporations or unions to participate
directly in canpaigns for or against candidates. Because this is
a whole new landscape, it's a good idea to start wth
restrictions that are as tight as possible. W can deal with it
if a court later orders the state to | oosen the restrictions, he
sai d.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- March 12, 2010



CHAIR FRENCH pointed out that in this state three conpanies
account for 90 percent of the state's revenue so they are going
to have a profound interest in participating directly in
el ections for the very understandable reason of relieving their
tax burden. For these reasons it's very inportant to have strong
laws in place to let people know who is speaking to them he
sai d.

3:01:59 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL said he too is interested in full disclosure and
he understands the need for tight restrictions. But if we're
going to ask for disclosures on each advertisenment then we
should also ask candidates to disclose their top five
contributors on a canpaign advertisenent, he said. | don't think
we want to do that but there needs to be equity, and if we're
asking them to speak not wth a single voice but a conbined
voice of the top five contributors we mght actually be putting
nore burden on that individual voice than is necessary.

CHAIR FRENCH said it's a good point, but very different rules
apply to candidates as opposed to corporations rmaking
i ndependent expenditures. Mst candidates wll have 20-30
contributors at the maxi mum $500 per calendar year level so
you'd have to figure out a way to select the top three or top
five. "I'lIl leave that to you if you want to craft an anmendnent
to work that out,"” he said.

3:03: 53 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI opined that this doesn't stop any
i ndi vidual corporation or wunion from saying anything. This
addresses | aundering and unions or corporations who want to hide
behi nd anot her group. They have a legal right to do that, but
this legislation says that the public has a right to know who is
behind that group. Hi ding behind groups is ny big concern and
that's what this is aimed to stop, he said. There is absolutely
a conpelling state interest in defining the top contributors so
we can curtail trying to skirt disclosure, he said.

SENATOR COGHI LL said it's a good debate to have but he conti nues
to believe that the principals should speak for a corporation
rather than the top five contributors.

CHAI R FRENCH renoved his objection to Amendnment 4 and asked if
there was further objection.

SENATOR COGHI LL objected. "I really feel very strongly that we
need to go in a different direction," he said.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- March 12, 2010



A roll call vote was taken. Amendnent 4 was adopted on a 3:1
vote with Senators Wel echowski, MQ@iire, and French voting yea
and Senator Coghill voting nay.

CHAIR FRENCH said the legislation in the House identifies the
top three contributors but not their physical address so it's
likely that this section will receive further attention.

SENATOR COGHILL said he wouldn't offer Anmendnent 5, |abeled 26-
LS1448\ A. 9, because it's the argunent he used to try to defeat
Amendrent 4.

3:08: 15 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL nmoved Anendnent 6, | abel ed 26-LS1448\ A. 8.
AVENDVENT 6
OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR COCHI LL

TO  SB 284

Page 4, lines 5 - 14:
Delete all material and insert:

"* Sec. 7. AS 15.13.067 is anended to read:
Sec. 15.13.067. Wo may nmake expenditures. Only the
followng my nmake an expenditure that 1is not an
i ndependent expenditure in an election for candidates for
el ective office:
(1) the candi date;
(2) an individual;
(3) a group that has regi stered under AS 15.13.050; and
(4) a nongroup entity that has registered under
AS 15.13. 050."

Page 5, lines 3 - 11
Delete all material.

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
3:09: 03 PM
RYNNI EVA  MOSS, Staff to Senator Coghill, expl ai ned that

Amendnent 6 rewrites Section 7 to clarify that the Alaska State
Legislature is only changing statutes to deal with the Citizens
United decision, which deals with corporations and independent
expenditures. The |anguage is a better choice with respect to
preserving the intent of the decision, she said.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -23- March 12, 2010



CHAIR FRENCH sunmarized that Section 7 was rewitten in a
positive rather than negative manner and the material on page 5,
lines 3-11, was deleted in the belief that it would be captured
inthe rewitten section.

M5. MOSS agreed. She added that the original draft deleted
material in Section 7 and reinserted it in Section 10.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Bullard to speak to the anmendnent.

MR. BULLARD said that in the past corporations and unions were
not allowed to make expenditures on behalf of candidates and all
this bill does is allow them to make independent expenditures.
My concern is that | don't know if this change is significant,
but it has the potential to be so in the future depending on
whi ch direction the statutes go, he said.

3:12:40 PM
CHAIR FRENCH noted, with sone surprise, that the AS 15.13.050
registration requirenents are still in the bill on lines 9 and

10 of the anendnent.

CHAI R FRENCH renoved his objection to Anendnent 6. Finding no
further objection, he announced that Amendnent 6 is adopt ed.

He asked the nenbers to read M. Ptacin's letter dated 3/9/10
before the next hearing because the concerns he articulated may
elicit additional anendnents.

CHAIR FRENCH held SB 284 in commttee for further work.
3:13: 47 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 3:13 p. m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- March 12, 2010



